



**Easement Vacation: 645 Southview Terrace S.E.**

<b>Tax Map #</b>	<b>Owner(s)</b>		<b>Mailing Address</b>	<b>City, St, Zip</b>
528- 8 8	TICKLE ALFRED LINCOLN	TICKLE BEULAH RADFORD	495 DOGWOOD LN	CHRISTIANSBURG VA 24073
528- 9 20	BOWER FREDERICK W	BOWER FRANCES A	490 OVERTHILL RD	CHRISTIANSBURG VA 24073
528- 9 60A	BUTTERFIELD ALLEN N	BUTTERFIELD JOANNE W	675 SOUTHVIEW TER	CHRISTIANSBURG VA 24073
528- 9 52	JAYDIN LLC		645 SOUTHVIEW TER	CHRISTIANSBURG VA 24073
528- 9 53,54	EARL WAYNE BROCKENBROUGH REV TRUST	C/O MR & MRS EARL WAYNE BROCKENBROUGH TR	605 SOUTHVIEW TER	CHRISTIANSBURG VA 24073
528- 14 19	MILLER CHARLES N	MILLER MARY ANN	595 CHINQUAPIN TRL	CHRISTIANSBURG VA 24073
528- A 76	EARL WAYNE BROCKENBROUGH REV TRUST	C/O MR & MRS EARL WAYNE BROCKENBROUGH TR	605 SOUTHVIEW TER	CHRISTIANSBURG VA 24073

**AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 42 “ZONING,” SPECIFICALLY  
SECTIONS 42-625, 42-626, 42-630, AND 42-633 OF THE CHRISTIANSBURG  
TOWN CODE TO CLARIFY THE REQUIREMENTS FOR FINAL SITE PLANS,  
WHEN PRELIMINARY AND FINAL SITE PLANS EXPIRE, AND FEES  
ASSOCIATED WITH THE SUBMITTAL OF SAME.**

WHEREAS, the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia desires to amend its Zoning Ordinance to address certain issues with the Site Plan Review process; and,

WHEREAS, notice of the Planning Commission public hearing regarding the intention of the Town Council to pass said ordinance was published two consecutive weeks (September 21, 2013 and September 28, 2013) in The News Messenger, a newspaper published in and having general circulation in the Town of Christiansburg; and,

WHEREAS, notice of the intention of the Town Council to pass said ordinance was published two consecutive weeks (October 19, 2013, October 26, 2013, November 20, 2013 and November 27, 2013) in The News Messenger, a newspaper published in and having general circulation in the Town of Christiansburg; and,

WHEREAS, a public hearing of the Planning Commission of the Town was held September 23, 2013 and resulted in a recommendation by the Planning Commission that the following proposed ordinance revisions be adopted; and,

WHEREAS, a public hearing of Council of the Town was held November 6, 2013 and December 3, 2013; and,

WHEREAS, Council deems proper so to do,

Be it ordained by the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia that Sections 42-625, 42-626, 42-630, and 42-633 of Chapter 42 “Zoning” of the *Christiansburg Town Code* be amended as follows:

**ARTICLE XXI. SITE PLAN REVIEW**

\* \* \*

**Sec. 42-625. Requirements for site plans, content and form.**

(a) *Preliminary site plans.* Site plans shall include proposals for developments or subdivisions including all covenants, grants or easements and other conditions relating to use, location and bulk of buildings, density of development, common open space, public facilities and such other information as required by the subdivision ordinance to which the proposed development or subdivision is subject. The preliminary site plans shall be clearly drawn to scale as specified below and shall show the following:

1. The proposed title of the project, owner or owners of the land, and name of the engineer, architect, designer, or landscape architect, and the developer.
2. The north point, scale, and date.
3. Location of the project by an insert map indicating the north arrow and such information as the names and numbers of adjoining roads, streams and bodies of water, railroads, subdivisions, towns, and magisterial districts or other landmarks sufficient to clearly identify the location of the property.
4. Existing zoning and zoning district boundaries and proposed changes in zoning, if any, and including floodplain districts.
5. The boundaries of the property involved, municipal boundaries, the general location of all existing easements and property lines, existing streets, buildings, or waterways, major tree masses and other existing physical features in or adjoining the project.
6. Uses of adjoining properties and names of owners.
7. Topography of the project area with contour intervals of two feet or less, unless waived by the Administrator as clearly unnecessary to review the project or proposal.
8. The approximate location and sizes of sanitary and storm sewers, water mains, culverts, and other underground structures, existing and planned, in or near the project.
9. The general location and character of construction of proposed streets, alleys, driveways, curb cuts, entrances and exits, loading areas (including number of parking and loading spaces), outdoor lighting systems, storm drainage and sanitary facilities.
10. The general location of proposed lots, setback lines, and easements and proposed reservations for parks, parkways, playgrounds, school sites, and open spaces.
11. Location with respect to each other and to lot lines, number of floors, number of dwelling units and approximate height of all proposed buildings and structures, accessory and main, or major excavations.
12. Preliminary plans and elevations of the several dwelling types and other buildings, as may be necessary.

13. General location, height, and material of all fences, walls, screen planting, and landscaping.
14. General location, character, size, height, and orientation of proposed signs.
15. A tabulation of the total number of dwelling units of various types in the project and the overall project density in dwelling units per acre, gross or net as required by district regulations.
16. A traffic impact statement whenever a proposed site plan substantially affects transportation on Town streets through traffic generation of either:
  - (i) 100 vehicles trips per peak hour by residential development, or
  - (ii) 250 vehicles trips per peak hour by non-residential development, or
  - (iii) 2,500 vehicle trips per day by non-residential development.

The data and analysis contained in the traffic impact statement shall comply with VDOT Traffic Impact Analysis Regulations 24 VAC 30-155-60 and all applicable Town ordinances.

17. Overlot grading plan.
18. General Notes per the Town of Christiansburg Site Plan and Development Plan Check List.
19. Location and size of parking and loading spaces (including ADA compliant spaces with accessible route).
20. Location, height, and orientation of proposed outside lighting for parking areas.
21. Sidewalk location, including appropriate detail for sidewalk.
22. Inclusion of location for dumpster pad with screening, accompanied by appropriate detail.
23. A tabulation of the total area, impervious surfaces, greenspace, landscaping and tree required and provided per district regulations.
24. A tabulation of interior parking lot greenspace and trees required and provided for parking lots with 20 or more parking spaces.
25. Owner/Developer Certification Statement.
26. Responsible Land Disturber Certification Statement for Erosion and Sediment Control Plan, an agreement in lieu of an Erosion Sediment

Control Plan, or a Land-Disturbing Permit. This individual shall be in charge of and responsible for the land disturbing activities for the project.

**27. Town Manager Approval Block.**

The Administrator may establish additional requirements for preliminary site plans, and in special cases, may waive a particular requirement if, in his opinion, the inclusion of that requirement is not essential to a proper decision on the project. Site plans may be prepared on one or more sheets to show clearly the information required by this article and to facilitate the review and approval of the plan. If prepared in more than one sheet, match lines shall indicate where the several sheets join. Site plans shall be prepared to a scale of one inch equals 50 feet, or such other scale as may be approved by the Administrator as appropriate to a particular case.

(b) *Final site plans.* The final site plan or final plat shall be based on good engineering judgment, signed and sealed in accordance with Code of Virginia § 54.1-400 et seq., by a Licensed Professional Engineer, Licensed Architect, Licensed Professional Land Surveyor or a Licensed Professional Landscape Architect and comply with all laws, regulations, and ordinances including, but not limited to, those governing the approval of subdivisions and in addition to all the requirements for preliminary site plans, shall show include the following:

1. All of the features required on the preliminary site plan or preliminary development plan with sufficiently accurate dimensions, finished floor elevations, construction specifications and computations to support the issuance of construction permits.
2. All existing and proposed water and sanitary sewer facilities indicating all pipe sizes, types and grades and where connection is to be made to the utility system.
3. Provisions for the adequate disposition of natural and storm water shall be clearly shown on the plans and shall provide positive drainage away from all buildings and structures, and such drainage shall not be directed toward buildings or structures on adjacent properties. In addition, well organized calculations and documentation that support the design and ensure an adequate review shall be included with the final site plan or development plan, in accordance with the duly adopted design criteria and standards of the Town indicating the location, sizes, types and grades of ditches, catchbasins and pipes and connections to existing drainage system, and provision for the adequate control of erosion and sedimentation, indicating the proposed temporary and permanent control practices and measures which will be implemented during all phases of clearing, grading, and construction.
4. All drainage system components and stormwater management systems, including the location, sizes, types and grades of ditches, inlets,

catchbasins, pipes and connections to existing and proposed drainage systems. Drainage system components shall be designed in accordance with the latest edition of the Virginia Department of Transportation Drainage Manual and in accordance with all instructional and informational memorandums. Stormwater management facilities and components shall be designed in accordance with the latest edition of the Department of Environmental Quality Stormwater Management Handbook.

5. Provisions to manage stormwater normally directed into inlets and pipes, when such inlets and pipes may be exceeded in capacity or restricted due to sediment buildup or some other blockage. As a result of inlets and pipes being unable to convey the design flow, the provisions shall include, but not be limited to; grading that minimizes flooding of buildings and structures in accordance with good engineering design practices as deemed acceptable by the Town Engineer.
6. Provision for the adequate control of erosion and sedimentation, indicating the proposed temporary and permanent control practices and measures that will be implemented during all phases of clearing, grading and construction.
4. 7. Existing topography with two-foot contour intervals or such intervals as approved by the Administrator. Where existing ground is on a slope of less than two percent, either one-foot contours or spot elevations where necessary, but not more than 50 feet apart in both directions.
5. 8. Proposed finished grading by contours supplemented where necessary by spot elevations.

**Sec. 42-626. Procedures, administrative site plan review.**

(a) When these regulations require site plan review for certain uses for which Town Council action is not required, a preliminary site plan for any of the specified uses shall be submitted to the Administrator for review of the plans for compliance with these regulations and the requirements for preliminary site plans. The Administrator shall transmit said plans to such other staff and agencies as he may consider necessary for the review. The applicant is advised to review his plans in general or sketch form with the Administrator prior to drafting for submittal.

(b) The Administrator shall examine the proposed preliminary site plan with respect to: the requirements of this chapter in effect upon the date of submittal; with respect to the traffic and circulation patterns, internal and external; and relation to major thoroughfares; utilities, drainage and community facilities, existing or proposed; surrounding development, existing or future; and considerations of topography, floodplains, and the natural environment, the preservation of trees or historic sites, provision for open space; and in general with the objective of insuring a durable, harmonious, and

appropriate use of the land in accord with the objectives of the Comprehensive Plan. The plans shall be returned to the applicant with relevant comments in accordance with Code of Virginia § 15.2-2259. The applicant is responsible for revising the site plan in a timely manner addressing all relevant comments to the satisfaction of the Town Manager, Town Engineer, or Zoning Administrator prior to approval. ~~Unless otherwise specified approval shall be valid for a period of one year prior to the issuance of building permits. Final site plan approval shall be valid for the minimum time provided for Code of Virginia §15.2-2261.~~ The Town's comments or commitments on a preliminary site plan that has not achieved final approval shall be valid for a period of six months from the date that the comments are rendered for the Town's first review comments, four months from the date comments are rendered for the Town's second review comments, and two months from the date comments are rendered for the third and any subsequent review comments, unless extended for a period of 15 days due to extenuating circumstances by the Administrator, not to exceed 30 days. Additionally, if the comments have not been addressed to the satisfaction of the Town Manager, Town Engineer, and Zoning Administrator and a final site plan approval rendered within two years from the date of site plan submission, the preliminary site plan shall be deemed to have been voluntarily withdrawn by the applicant. Any subsequent submission shall begin the review process anew and shall require compliance with the provisions of this chapter (and any other applicable laws and regulations) in effect at the time of subsequent submission.

(c) If specified conditions or comments are met in revised plans within the time periods specified and the plans meet the requirements of a final site plan, the Administrator may Town Manager shall approve the final site plan. The Town Manager may approve additional minor changes, if, in the his opinion of the Administrator such changes do not substantially affect the original approval submittal and comments or conditions attached thereto.

(d) In any case where the Town Manager or Administrator is of the opinion that a proposed project subject to administrative site plan review is of such scale and impact that a decision on the site plan should be reached only after a review by the Town Council or the Planning Commission, he may refer the plan to the Council or the Commission or both of them for an advisory recommendation.

(e) Nothing in this section shall be interpreted to permit a grant of a variance or exception to the regulations of this chapter or to abridge the procedures or requirements of the laws and ordinances governing the subdivision of land.

(f) There shall be a charge for the examination and approval or disapproval of every site plan by the Administrator Town. At the time of filing the preliminary site plan, the developer or his agent shall deposit with the Administrator Town cash or checks payable to the Treasurer in the amount as set forth herein or as established in the latest edition of the Town development fee schedule, which may be amended from time to time by Town Council.

(g) The Town ~~may shall~~ require as-built site plans if ~~deemed necessary by the Town Engineer of public improvements, including geotechnical investigations. As-built plans may be required for other site improvements as deemed necessary by the Town.~~

\* \* \*

**Sec. 42-630. Amendments and additions to site plans approved by the Town Council.**

(a) The procedure for amendment of the boundaries of or the extent of land use for an approved Conditional Use Permit shall be the same as for a new application, except that minor amendments of an approved site plan and conditions attached to an approved Conditional Use Permit, or other site plan approved by the Town Council, may be approved by the Administrator, provided such change or amendment:

1. Does not alter a recorded plat,
2. Does not conflict with the specific requirements of this chapter,
3. Does not change the general character or content of an approved development plan or use,
4. Has no appreciable effect on adjoining or surrounding property,
5. Does not result in any substantial change of major external access points,
6. Does not increase the approved number of dwelling units or height of buildings, and
7. Does not decrease the minimum specified yards and open spaces or minimum or maximum specified parking and loading spaces.

(b) Amendments to conditions approved with conditional zoning are covered in Article I of this chapter.

\* \* \*

**Sec. 42-633. Approval and extension.**

Final approval of a site plan submitted under the provisions of this article shall expire in accordance with the minimum time provided for in Code of Virginia, § 15.2-2261. A single one-year extension may be given upon written request by the applicant to the Administrator made within 90 days before the expiration of the approved site plan. The administrator shall acknowledge the request and shall make a decision regarding the requested extension within 30 days after receipt of the request.

---

This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. If any part of this ordinance is deemed unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction all remaining parts

shall be deemed valid. Ordinances or parts of any ordinances of the Town whose provisions are in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

Upon a call for an aye and nay vote on the foregoing ordinance at a regular meeting of the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia held \_\_\_\_\_, 2013 the members of the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia present throughout all deliberations on the foregoing and voting or abstaining, stood as indicated opposite their names as follows:

<u>Absent</u>	<u>Aye</u>	<u>Nay</u>	<u>Abstain</u>
Mayor Richard G. Ballengee*			
D. Michael Barber			
Cord Hall			
Steve Huppert			
Henry Showalter			
Bradford J. Stipes			
James W. "Jim" Vanhoozier			

\*Votes only in the event of a tie vote by Council.

SEAL:

---

Michele M. Stipes, Town Clerk

---

Richard G. Ballengee, Mayor

**AN ORDINANCE REQUESTING AMENDMENT OF THE  
CHARTER OF THE TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG, VIRGINIA  
BY THE VIRGINIA GENERAL ASSEMBLY**

WHEREAS, the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia has studied amendments to the Charter of the Town of Christiansburg; and,

WHEREAS, notice of the intention of the Town Council to pass said ordinance was published two consecutive weeks (November 20, 2013 and November 27, 2013) in The News Messenger, a newspaper published in and having general circulation in the Town of Christiansburg; and,

WHEREAS, a public hearing of the Council of the Town of Christiansburg was held December 3, 2013 and resulted in an affirmative vote that the following proposed revisions to the Charter be forwarded to the Virginia General Assembly for consideration and action; and,

WHEREAS, Council deems it proper to do so,

Be it ordained by the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia that the proposed revisions to the Charter be forwarded to the Virginia General Assembly for consideration and action as follows:

**CHAPTER 1. INCORPORATION AND BOUNDARIES**

**Sec. 1.02. Boundaries.**

The present boundaries of the Town are as set forth in annexation orders a voluntary boundary adjustment effective at midnight on the thirtieth day of April Two Thousand and Nine entered on the ninth tenth day of October Nineteen Hundred Seventy four April Two Thousand and Nine, and of record in Chancery Order Book No. 39, page 442 et seq. as Order Instrument No. 2009023593 and 2009023717 and Deed Instrument No. 2009003478 of the Clerk's Office of the Circuit Court of Montgomery County, Virginia, and are incorporated herein by reference thereto. Future annexation orders and voluntary boundary adjustments as appropriately approved and recorded in the Clerk's Office of the Circuit Court of Montgomery County, Virginia shall act to amend these boundaries of the Town upon their effective dates and times.

(Acts 1968, Ch. 173; Acts 1981, Ch. 616, § 1)

**CHAPTER 2. ADMINISTRATION AND GOVERNMENT**

**Sec. 2.01. Vesting of administration and government in Council; composition of Council; election and term of Council members; Council to be continuing body; vacancies in Council.**

The administration and government of the Town is vested in the Council composed of a Mayor and six Councilmen, all of whom shall be electors of the Town.

(a) The Council shall be elected in the manner provided by law. Three council members shall be elected on the November 2011 general election date and every four years thereafter. A

mayor and three other council members shall be elected on the November 2013 general election date and every four years thereafter. Terms of office shall begin on the first day of January next following their election. Each Council member and the Mayor elected as hereinabove provided shall serve for the term stated or until his successor has been elected and qualified. The Council shall be a continuing body, and no measure pending before such body shall abate or be discontinued by reason of expiration of term of office or removal of any of its members.

(b) Vacancy in the Council or in the Office of Mayor shall be filled within ~~sixty forty-five~~ days, for the unexpired term, by a majority vote of the remaining members ~~for the remainder of the unexpired term or until special election as required by Code of Virginia; provided, that if the term of office to be filled does not expire for two years or more after the next regular election for Council member, following such vacancy and such vacancy occurs in time to permit it, then the Council shall fill such vacancy only for the period then remaining until such election, and should a majority of the remaining members of Council fail to agree or act, appointment may be made by the circuit court until~~ a qualified person shall ~~then~~ be elected by the qualified voters and shall from and after the date of his election and qualification succeed such appointee and serve the unexpired term. The number of candidates for Council equal to the number of vacancies to be filled for full terms receiving the highest number of votes shall be entitled to such full terms and the candidate receiving the next highest number of votes shall be entitled to the unexpired term caused by such vacancy.

(c) Notwithstanding any provisions of law to the contrary, any person shall be qualified to fill a vacancy on Council or as Mayor who is a resident of the Town and is a qualified elector therein, except that a member of Council shall not be qualified to fill a vacancy as Mayor.

(Acts 1981, ch. 616, § 1; Acts 2010, ch. 848, §1(2.01))

### **Sec. 2.03. Municipal officers.**

The municipal officers of said Town shall, in addition to the Mayor, consist of Treasurer, Chief of Police, Clerk of the Town Council, Town Manager and Town Attorney; and the Mayor may appoint such committees of the Council as he may see fit, and the Council may create such boards and departments of Town government and administration with such powers and duties and subject to such regulations as it may see fit, consistent with the provisions of this act and the general laws of this state. The said Treasurer and Clerk may be one and the same person if the Council deems it more expedient.

No employee of the Town or either of the officers of Treasurer, Chief of Police, Clerk of the Town Council, Town Manager or Town Attorney shall be required at the time of their employment or appointment to be a resident of the Town.

(Acts 1968, Ch. 173; Acts 1981, Ch. 616, § 1)

### **Sec. 2.04. Town Manager.**

The Council of the Town may, in its discretion, appoint a Town Manager who may also serve as Town Engineer. Upon appointment of a Town Manager, he shall be vested with administrative and executive powers of the Town and shall hold office during the pleasure of the Council. He shall receive such compensation as may be fixed by the Council. He shall see that within the Town the laws, ordinances, resolutions and bylaws of the Council are faithfully executed and that the duties of the various other appointed Town officers, members of the police, fire and public works departments and all other departments of the Town government, are faithfully performed. He shall have power to investigate their acts, have access to all books and documents in their offices and may examine them or their subordinates on oath, but the evidence

given by the persons so examined shall not be used against them in any criminal proceedings. He shall attend all meetings of the Council as deemed reasonably practical by Council and recommend for adoption such measures as he may deem expedient. He shall make reports to the Council from time to time as to the affairs of the Town and keep the Council fully advised as to the Town's financial condition and its future financial needs. He shall prepare and submit to the Council a tentative budget for each fiscal year. The Town Manager shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Council and shall be bonded in such amount as the Council may deem necessary.

(Acts 1968, Ch. 173)

**Sec. 2.09. Mayor, Councilmen and municipal officers to be sworn in before entering upon duties; duration of oath.**

The Mayor, Councilmen and all municipal officers of said Town shall, before entering upon the duties of their respective offices, be sworn in, in accordance with the laws of the state of Virginia, by anyone authorized to administer oaths under the laws of the state. Oaths of municipal officers of the Town taken upon original appointment shall be considered to remain in effect for the duration of time the municipal officer remains in the respective office and new oaths shall not be required for reappointment of municipal officers to the respective office.

**Sec. 2.10. Certificates of oaths.**

When the Mayor, Councilmen, Town Manager, Treasurer, Clerk, and Sergeant Police Chief take the oaths required of them, duplicate certificates of the Court or person administering the same, stating the fact of their having been taken, shall be obtained by the person taking the same and be by him delivered for record as follows: One to the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Montgomery County and one to the Clerk of the Town Council. When any other municipal officer takes the oath required of him, a certificate as aforesaid, shall be secured by him and delivered to the Clerk of the Town Council.

**Sec. 2.11. Effect of neglect to take oath or to give bond with security.**

If any person elected or appointed to any office in said Town shall neglect to take such oath ~~on or before the day on within thirty days of taking office or appointment~~ of which he is to enter upon the discharge of the duties of his office, ~~or shall, for twenty days after the beginning of his term of office, fail to give such bond with such security as may be required of him by the Council of said Town~~, he shall be considered as having declined said office, and the same shall be deemed vacant, and such vacancy shall be filled as prescribed in this Act Charter or by the general laws of this state.

**Sec. 2.12. Delivery of Town property, books and papers to successor in office.**

If any person, having been an officer of said Town, shall not within ten days after he shall have vacated or been removed from office, and upon notification of request of the Council within such time as it may allow, deliver to his successor in office all property, books and papers belonging to the Town or appertaining to such office, in possession or under his control, he shall forfeit and pay to the Town a sum not exceeding five hundred dollars, to be sued for and recovered with costs; and all books, records and documents used in any office by virtue of any provision of this Act Charter, or of any ordinances or order of the Town Council or any superior officer of said Town, shall be deemed the property of said Town and appertaining to said office, and the chief officer thereof shall be held responsible therefor.

**Sec. 2.16. Vacancy in Office of Mayor.**

In case a vacancy shall occur in the Office of the Mayor, the vacancy shall be filled by the method provided in Section 2.01 for filling vacancies in the Council.  
(Acts 1981, Ch. 616, § 1)

**Sec. 2.23. Filling vacancy on Council when member disqualified or expelled.**

If any member of the Council shall be adjudged by the Council disqualified or be expelled, under the previous Section 2-22, 2.22, a special election shall be held under the general election laws of the Commonwealth to fill such vacancy, for the unexpired term.

**Sec. 2.23A. Power of Council when member voluntarily absent from meetings consecutively for three months; irregular elections.**

If any member of said Council be voluntarily absent from its meetings consecutively for three months, his seat may be declared vacant by the Council, and the unexpired term filled by appointment as provided in Section 2-01(b) 2.01(b).

Where not otherwise provided for by the laws of this state the Town Council shall by ordinance provide for any irregular elections not herein or by the state laws provided for, and appoint the necessary officers to conduct the same.

**Sec. 2.25. General powers of Council--Management of municipal and fiscal affairs and of Town property.**

The Town Council shall have, subject to the provisions of this Aet Charter and the general laws of this state, the management and control of the fiscal and municipal affairs of the Town and of all property, real and personal, belonging to the Town.

**Sec. 2.27. Same--As to ordinances and bylaws, taxes and licenses, appointment of officers, etc.**

For carrying into effect the powers granted by this Aet Charter and the general laws of this State, the Town Council may make ordinances and bylaws, and prescribe fines and other punishments for violation thereof, levy taxes and licenses, keep Town guard, appoint a collector of taxes and levies, and such other officers as they may deem proper, define their powers, prescribe their duties and compensation, and take from any of them a bond, with surety, in such penalty as the Council may deem proper, payable to the Town by its corporate name, and with condition for the faithful discharge of the said duties.

**Sec. 2.28. Clerk of Council.**

The Clerk of the Council shall be appointed by ~~it~~ the Town Council, and shall attend the meetings of the Council and shall keep permanent records of its proceedings; and also keep such other papers, documents and records pertaining to the Town as may be determined by the Council; he shall be custodian of the Town seal and shall affix it to all documents and instruments requiring the seal, and shall attest the same; he shall give notice to all parties, presenting petitions or communications; he shall give the proper department or officials ample notice of the expiration or termination of any franchise, contract or agreements agreement; he shall publish such records and ordinances as the Council is required to publish and such other records and ordinances as it may direct; he shall upon final passage transmit to the proper departments or officials copies of

all ordinances or resolutions of the Council relating in any way to such departments or to the duties of such officials, and he shall perform such other acts and duties as the Council may, from time to time, allow or require.

(Acts 1968, Ch. 173)

### **Sec. 2.31. Chief of Police.**

The Town Council shall have the power and authority to appoint a Chief of Police and to provide for the employment of such additional police officers and ~~privates~~ other support staff as it may deem necessary or proper, to prescribe rules and regulations for the government thereof, to prescribe their ~~rate of pay structure~~; and in addition thereto the Mayor, or in his absence, the Vice-Mayor, or in the absence of both, any Councilman, shall have the power and authority whenever the regular police force of the Town is inadequate to meet the needs of the occasion, to appoint and swear in such additional or special policemen as he may deem requisite for a term of service not to exceed ten days and at such compensation as the Council may fix for special policemen. The duties and powers of such special policemen shall be the same as that of ~~private patrol officer~~ of the regular police force.

(Acts 1968, Ch. 173; Acts 1981, Ch. 616, § 1)

### **Sec. 2.32. Police force.**

The police force shall be under the control of the Town Manager, and during any time that the Office of the Town Manager is not filled, or in the absence of the Town Manager, under the control of the Mayor, for the purpose of enforcing peace and order and executing the laws of the state and ordinances of the Town. They shall perform such other duties as the Council may prescribe. For the purpose of enabling them to execute their duties, each policeman is hereby invested with all the power and authority which belongs to the office of the constable at common law in criminal cases.

(Acts 1968, Ch. 173)

## **CHAPTER 3. TAXATION, FINANCES, ETC.**

### **Sec. 3.19. Execution of bonds, etc.**

All bonds, and other evidences of indebtedness of the Town, shall be signed by the Mayor and countersigned by the Clerk of the Council, who shall affix the corporate seal of the Town and attest the same.

### **Sec. 3.20. Sinking funds.**

(a) There shall be set apart from the revenues of the Town an annual amount to be covered into a sinking fund sufficient to pay, at or before maturities, all outstanding bonded indebtedness of the Town. This does not include so-called short term obligations of the Town. The Council may, in its discretion, annually, from time to time, set aside such additional sinking funds for equipment and capital improvements as it may deem advisable.

(b) All sinking funds set aside for the payment of the bonded indebtedness of the Town shall be used exclusively in the payment or purchase and redemption of such outstanding bonds. When any sinking funds are not immediately needed for the purpose for which they were provided, they may be invested in securities as provided for by ~~see. 26-40 of the~~ Code of Virginia

§ 15.2-2500 under the then existing laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia for public sinking funds, to such extent as the Council shall deem proper or expedient.

(Acts 1968, Ch. 173)

**Sec. 3.21. Biannual Annual audit of financial records; fiscal year.**

The Council shall have the financial records of the Town audited by a Certified Public Accountant biannually annually, as soon after the close of the fiscal year as is practicable or at any other time deemed necessary by the Council. The fiscal year begins September One of each year and ends August Thirty one of the following year in accordance with the Code of Virginia.

~~The Town Council may, by resolution, change the fiscal year where it would seem to be to the best interest of the Town.~~

(Acts 1968, Ch. 173)

## **CHAPTER 4. PROPERTY, BUILDINGS, UTILITIES AND STREETS**

**Sec. 4.01. Town Plan generally; subdivisions.**

The Town is empowered to make and adopt a Comprehensive Plan for the Town, and to that end all plats and replats hereafter made subdividing any land within two miles of its corporate limits into streets, alleys, roads and lots or tracts shall be submitted to and approved by the Council within such limitations as they may prescribe before such plats or replats are filed for record or recorded in the Office of the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Montgomery County, Virginia.

The Town Council shall have the authority to require real estate subdividers within the corporate limits of the Town to construct, at the subdivider's expense, water mains, sewer mains, streets, drainage, sidewalks, curbs and gutters. Such construction to shall be as prescribed by and under the direction of the Town Council.

The Town Council shall have the authority to negotiate with subdividers without the corporate limits as to the construction of water mains, sewer mains, and as to water and sewer service.

**Sec. 4.06. Waterworks, sewage disposal facilities, etc.; eminent domain.**

(a) The Town Council shall have the power and authority to acquire or otherwise obtain control of, or establish, maintain, operate, extend and enlarge waterworks, sewerage systems and treatment facilities, gasworks, electric plants, airports and other public utilities within or without the limits of the Town; to acquire within or without the limits of the Town by purchase, or otherwise, whatever land may be necessary for acquiring, locating, establishing, maintaining, operating, extending and enlarging said waterworks, electric plants, airports, and other utilities, and rights of way, rails, pipes, manholes, poles, conduits and wires connected therewith; establish rates, rules and regulations for all public utilities operated by the Town, any or all of which rates, rules and regulations the Council may alter at any time without notice. The Town Council may, by ordinance, prohibit the waste and unnecessary use of water.

(b) The Town of Christiansburg may exercise the power of eminent domain with respect to land and improvements thereon, machinery and equipment, for any lawful purposes of said Town.

The powers set forth in ~~See[s]. 15.1-837 through 15.1-915 inclusive of Chapter 18 of Title 15.1 of the Code of Virginia §§ 15.2-1100 et seq.~~ as in force on ~~January One, Nineteen Hundred Sixty eight the date of the enactment of this Charter~~ are hereby conferred on and vested in the Town of Christiansburg. In addition, the Town of Christiansburg shall have the powers set forth in ~~See[s]. 33-70.1 §§ 33.1-119 through 33-70.11 33.1-129~~. When certificates are issued pursuant to ~~See[s]. 33-70.1 §§ 33.1-119 through 33-70.11 33.1-129~~, inclusive, of the Code of Virginia as amended, and acts amendatory thereof and supplemental thereto, they may be issued by the Town Council, signed by the Town Manager, or the Mayor, and countersigned by the Town Treasurer. Such certificate shall have the same effect as a certificate issued by the ~~State Highway~~ Virginia Department of Transportation Commissioner of Highways under the aforesaid laws, and may be issued in any case in which the Town proposes to acquire property of any kind by the exercise of its powers of eminent domain for any lawful public purpose, whether within or without the Town; provided, that the provisions of ~~See[s]. 33-70.1 §§ 33.1-119 through 33-70.11 33.1-129~~, inclusive, shall not be used except for the acquisition of lands or easements necessary for streets, water, sewer or utility pipes or lines or related facilities.

(Acts 1968, Ch. 173)

#### **Sec. 4.10. Grade of streets, sidewalks, etc.; permits for street openings.**

The Town Council shall have the exclusive authority to determine the grades for all streets, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, and alleys not in conflict with the ~~State~~ Virginia Department of Highways Transportation, and shall have the right to require permits for, and control of any opening in any street under its jurisdiction.

### **CHAPTER 6. HEALTH AND SANITATION**

#### **Sec. 6.02. Connection with and use of Town sewer or water pipe lines.**

The Town Council shall have the power and authority to require the owners or occupiers of the real estate within the corporate limits of the Town to use such sewer pipes and conduits and water furnished by the Town under such ordinances and regulations as the Council may deem necessary to secure the proper sewerage thereof and to improve and secure good sanitary conditions; and shall have the power to enforce the observance of all such ordinances and regulations by the imposition and collection of fines and penalties, to be collected as other fines and penalties, under the provisions of this Charter.

(Acts 1968, Ch. 173)

### **CHAPTER 7. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS**

#### **Sec. 7.01. Contracts for erection of public improvements and buildings; interest of Council members in contracts.**

All contracts for the erection of public improvements and buildings within the jurisdiction of the Town ~~where the estimated cost thereof exceeds three thousand dollars shall be in compliance with the Code of Virginia~~, and in all cases where practicable, shall be let to the lowest responsible bidder, all things considered, and the party to whom any contract is let shall give bond as the Council may require, but in no event shall any contract be let to any member of the Town Council, nor shall any member have any interest in such contract.

(Acts 1968, Ch. 173)

**Sec. 7.03. Protection of persons and property and preservation of peace and order.**

The Town Council shall have the power and authority to protect the persons and property of the inhabitants of the Town and others within the Town; ~~to restrain and punish drunkards, vagrants and street beggars; to prevent vice and immorality; to preserve the public peace and good order; to prevent and quell riots, disturbances and disorderly assemblages; to suppress houses of ill fame and gambling houses; to prevent and punish lewd or indecent conduct or exhibitions in the Town; and to expel therefrom persons guilty of such conduct who have not resided therein as much as one year; and for any violation of such ordinances may impose fines and other punishments in addition to those prescribed by the laws of the State.~~

**Sec. 7.04. Prevention of certain persons from coming into Town. Repealed by Acts 2014, Ch. XXX.**

~~The Town Council shall have the power and authority to prevent the coming into Town of persons having no ostensible means of support, and of persons who may be dangerous to the peace and safety of the Town.~~

**Sec. 7.06. County Trial Justice System; judicial authority of Mayor in event of withdrawal from County Trial Justice System Repealed by Acts 2014, Ch. XXX.**

~~The Town shall operate under the County Trial Justice System for the trial of violations of the ordinances of the Town. However, should the Town Council deem it advisable, to the best interest of the Town, to withdraw such system, then the Mayor shall try such cases and shall be clothed with the authority to inflict such punishment and impose such fines as may be prescribed for the violation of Town ordinances.~~

~~The compensation of the Mayor in the trial of such cases shall be as fixed by the Town Council.~~

**Editor's note--**The above section is superseded by Code of Virginia, § 16.1-123.1.

**Sec. 7.07. Police Justice Repealed by Acts 2014, Ch. XXX.**

~~In lieu of the Mayor trying cases involving the violation of Town ordinances, the Council may, in its discretion create, by ordinance, the Office of Police Justice and may appoint a Police Justice for the Town, to try all violations of Town ordinances.~~

~~The term of office and compensation of such Police Justice shall be as fixed by the Town Council.~~

**Sec. 7.08. Justice of the Peace Repealed by Acts 2014, Ch. XXX.**

~~The Town Council shall have the power to appoint a Justice of the Peace for such Town, who shall be clothed with all the powers and authority of other Justices of the Peace and upon whom may be conferred, in the manner provided in Section 16-129 of the Code of Virginia the right and authority therein set forth.~~

**Sec. 7.10. Working of prisoners.**

Any person confined in jail as provided in this Charter or for violations of Town ordinances, Code of Virginia, or federal laws may be required to work on the streets and public

works of said Town during the time of confinement. ~~Any person refusing so to work may be subjected to solitary confinement with a diet of bread and water for a period not exceeding thirty-six hours.~~

**Sec. 7.11. Continuance of existing ordinances.**

All ordinances now in force in the Town of Christiansburg, not inconsistent with this ~~act~~ Charter, shall be and remain in force until altered, amended or repealed by the Town Council.

**Sec. 7.14. Title of Charter.**

This ~~act~~ Charter may for all purposes be referred to or cited as the Christiansburg Charter of Nineteen Hundred and Fifty-four, as amended.

This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. If any part of this ordinance is deemed unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction all remaining parts shall be deemed valid. Ordinances or parts of any ordinances of the Town whose provisions are in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

Upon a call for an aye and nay vote on the foregoing ordinance at a regular meeting of the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia held \_\_\_\_\_, the members of the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia present throughout all deliberations on the foregoing and voting or abstaining, stood as indicated opposite their names as follows:

	<u>Aye</u>	<u>Nay</u>	<u>Abstain</u>	<u>Absent</u>
--	------------	------------	----------------	---------------

Mayor Richard G. Ballengee\*

D. Michael Barber

Cord Hall

Steve Huppert

Henry Showalter

Bradford J. Stipes

James W. "Jim" Vanhoozier

\*Votes only in the event of a tie vote by Council.

SEAL:

---

Michele M. Stipes, Town Clerk

---

Richard G. Ballengee, Mayor

Received at Town Hall:

November 20, 2013

NOV 25 2013

Randy Wingfield, Assistant Town Manager  
100 East Main Street  
Christiansburg, VA 24073

Subject: Parking on East Main Street

Dear Mr. Wingfield,

I am writing in order to address the issue of downtown parking on East Main Street. The time allowed for such parking is currently posted as 3 hours. It is imperative that this be changed to no longer than 30 minute parking in order to promote downtown business and encourage more customer traffic that is currently possible.

So many of the main street parking spaces are being used by people going into and out of the Courthouse, for which a parking garage and additional parking spaces behind the Courthouse were designed to accommodate. Many of the main street parking spaces are occupied by 8:00 to 8:30 AM and those same vehicles are still parked there until approximately noon. Once the lunch hour is finished, those same parking spaces are once again taken from 1:00 PM until the Courthouse closing at 4:30 PM. These same parking spaces are being used by Deputy Sheriff cars, Christiansburg Town Police, lawyers, and other officials who do business at the Courthouse and/or Police Stations.

We constantly have customers tell us that they drive by our business 4-5 times and are never able to find a parking place on the street. This hurts our florist, which also results in lost town and county tax revenues, because people cannot enter our establishment in order to conduct any business. Families have told us that they can't even find a place to park in order to come in and select flowers for their loved ones' funeral!

Additionally, our suppliers also have a problem finding a place to park in order to deliver those materials and supplies we need in order to maintain our operations and have merchandise to sell. There are no parking spaces available for drive-by sales representatives in order to come in and spend time showcasing new floral products for us to sell to the public. Few people ever stay in our shop more than 30 minutes, and no one should have the right to park on a town's main street for hours while doing business in a public courthouse.

We never experienced this problem to the degree we are now, until the opening of the new courthouse. This problem is exacerbated by people who refuse to park in those spaces that were designed for customers of the new courthouse facilities. Sadly enough, even the police and sheriff departments have not set a good example to the general public, when they have personnel who do not park in their appropriate spaces either.

We are asking you to please give serious consideration to having this time limit for public street parking changed to no longer than 30 minutes. We implore you to also begin to ticket people who leave their cars setting longer than this time allotment and enforce a financial penalty severe enough to discourage this practice. We believe that this would help solve a major problem for downtown businesses that have seen a dramatic decline in foot traffic, as well as help a lot of citizens who enjoy the experience of shopping downtown.

Sincerely,

**Bobby N. Roberts, Owner**  
**Angle Florist, Inc.**

**Cc: Mr. Tommy Whitt, Montgomery County Sheriff**  
**Cc: Mr. Mark Sisson, Chief, Christiansburg Police Department**  
**Cc: Member, Christiansburg Town Council**

**Christiansburg Planning Commission  
Minutes of November 25, 2013**

Present: Matthew J. Beasley  
Harry Collins  
Ashley Cowen  
M.H. Dorsett, AICP  
Steve Huppert  
Craig Moore, Chairperson  
Jennifer D. Sowers  
Nichole Hair, Secretary <sup>Non-Voting</sup>

Absent: Ann H. Carter  
David Franusich  
Jonathan Hedrick  
Joe Powers, Vice-Chairperson

Staff/Visitors: Kali Casper, staff  
Missy Martin, staff  
Todd Walters, Engineering staff

Chairperson Moore called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Christiansburg Town Hall at 100 E. Main Street, Christiansburg, Virginia to discuss the following items:

Public Comment.

Chairperson Moore opened the floor for public comment. No public comments were made. Chairperson Moore closed the floor for public comment.

Approval of meeting minutes for November 12, 2013.

Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion. Commissioner Dorsett made a motion to approve the Planning Commission meeting minutes. Commissioner Parsons seconded the motion, which passed 5-0, with Commissioners Beasley and Sowers abstaining.

Planning Commission discussion on Council's intention to adopt an ordinance amending Chapter 30 "Zoning" specifically, sections 30-185, 30-186, 30-190, and 30-193 of the Christiansburg Town Code to clarify the requirements for final site plans, when preliminary and final site plans expire, and fees associated with the submittal of same.

Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion. Ms. Hair noted the revisions are the most current draft of the ordinance. Ms. Hair reviewed the ordinance explaining changes from the recodification and the previous draft version.

Planning Commission discussion on Council's intention to adopt an ordinance amending Chapter 30 "Zoning" specifically, sections 30-185, 30-186, 30-190, and 30-193 of the Christiansburg Town Code to clarify the requirements for final site plans, when preliminary and final site plans expire, and fees associated with the submittal of same (continued).

Ms. Hair added Councilman Stipes requested more detailed requirements so information is easier to find for engineers and developers. Ms. Hair reviewed the listed requirements. Ms. Hair reviewed the changes regarding as-built plans.

Commissioner Dorsett asked if these changes would solve flooding problems like those at Slate Creek Commons, where there is flooding of new structures. Chairperson Moore responded it should address stormwater and give the Town increased ability to enforce provisions. Commissioner Dorsett asked how a development like Slate Creek Commons would be handled under these changes. Mr. Walters responded when Slate Creek was developed a grading plan would not have been required beyond infrastructure. Mr. Walters added plans for each individual lot is now required and must show grading and how stormwater will flow. Commissioner Dorsett asked what can be done if it does not work. Mr. Walters responded the as-built submissions should help with that when final inspections are performed. Dorsett asked about Huff Heritage as another example. Mr. Walters responded the site plan ordinance will help tremendously and grading plans already help. He added Huff Heritage was in the same situation as Slate Creek, where the development was only required to show grading of infrastructure at the time. Commissioner Dorsett asked if this takes into account the changes in EPA and Virginia stormwater management regulation changes. Mr. Walters responded yes.

Commissioner Huppert asked about the flooding in Slate Creek Commissions. Commissioner Dorsett explained further about the lots. Mr. Walters responded it has to do with lot grading. Commissioner Dorsett added the flooding is due to grading with one exception. Commissioner Collins asked if these houses were old or new. Commissioner Dorsett responded they are new houses.

Chairperson Moore asked for further discussion on the ordinance. Commissioner Dorsett made a motion to recommend Town Council adopt the amendment to the Zoning Ordinance. Commissioner Beasley seconded the motion which passed 7-0.

#### Other business

Chairperson Moore opened the floor for other business. Ms. Hair noted the amendment to the Zoning Ordinance regarding parking in the B-2 District was approved by Town Council. Ms. Hair added Town Council has requested the Planning Commission review the parking situation in six months. Ms. Hair suggested inviting the B-2 property owners to a Planning Commission meeting to gather feedback. Ms. Hair requested a Planning Commission representative serve on the Christiansburg Bikeway-Walkway Committee, preferably from the Comprehensive Plan subcommittee. She added the Bikeway Walkway Committee is meeting at 7:30 am on the first Friday of the month.

Other business – (continued).

Chairperson Moore noted that anyone can attend but would like to have one official Planning Commissioner who may vote later. Ms. Hair agreed. Commissioner Dorsett nominated Commissioner Powers in his absence. Commissioner Huppert agreed. Commissioner Sowers suggested Commissioner Franusich in his absence. Ms. Hair responded Commissioner Franusich has expressed interest and would fit as a user but there is a desire for Comprehensive Plan Subcommittee member in order to make sure there is a tie in with the Comprehensive Plan. Commissioner Dorsett agreed to serve if Commissioner Powers will not.

Ms. Hair noted a request to add the Pledge of Allegiance to the beginning of Planning Commission meetings. Commissioner Collins noted Town Council starts their meetings with it. With no objections, Ms. Hair stated she will add it to the agenda. Ms. Hair stated December 3, 2013 is the Town Council public hearing for the amendment to the Zoning Ordinance regarding site plans. Commissioner Dorsett asked if the Comprehensive Plan was adopted. Ms. Hair responded that it was adopted.

There being no more business Chairperson Moore adjourned the meeting at 7:20 p.m.

---

Craig Moore, Chairperson

Nichole Hair, Secretary Non-Voting

TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG		
NOVEMBER BILLS TO BE PAID DECEMBER 6, 2013		
VENDOR NAME	AMOUNT	DESCRIPTION
A CLEANER WORLD	456.65	
AARON J. CONNER GENERAL CONTRACTOR, INC	259,065.00	WATER LINE UPGRADE CAMBRIA
ABC SUPPLY CO. INC	297.00	
ADAMS CONSTRUCTION CO.	2,592.52	ASPHALT MIX
AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC	3,000.00	BRIDGE INSPECTIONS
AIRGAS MID-AMERICA, INC.	882.28	
ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES, INC.	1,459.25	TOWEL LAUNDRY SERVICES
ARCET EQUIPMENT COMPANY, INC	164.64	
ATCOM, INC	76.00	
ATLANTIC EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS, INC	9,644.34	FIRE TRUCK REPAIR
ATLANTIC MACHINERY, INC.	1,093.00	
ATLANTIC UTILITY SOLUTIONS, INC	10,315.00	NEW WATER METERS FOR REPLACEMENT AND NEW SERVICE
AUTO EXPERTS, LLC	45.00	
AUTO ZONE, INC	61.32	
BANE OIL COMPANY, INC	4,100.98	OFF ROAD DIESEL
BASHAM OIL COMPANY	49.97	
BENTLEY SYSTEMS INC.	3,169.00	WATER GEMS SUBSCRIPTION
BKT UNIFORMS	729.90	
BLACKSBURG/CHRISTIANSBURG	2,934.00	SMART WAY BUS QUARTELY
BLUE RIDGE RESCUE SUPPLIERS, INC	339.73	
BOB'S REFUSE SERVICE, INC.	220.00	
BOUNDTREE MEDICAL, LLC	249.69	
BOWIE SALES, INC.	4,238.90	MATERIALS FOR STORM WATER
BRAME SPECIALTY COMPANY INC.	1,593.11	JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
BRIAN'S LOCK & KEY	2.25	
CALDWELL CONSTRUCTION, INC	10,660.50	HUCKLEBERRY TRAIL BRIDGE DECK REPLACEMENT
CAMBRIDGE COMPUTER SERVICES, INC	54,871.11	NEW STORAGE DEVICE "sans" IT
CARGILL, INC.	9,018.90	DEICER
CAROLINA INDUSTRIAL EQUIPMENT	846.94	
CARQUEST AUTO PARTS	320.00	
CENTRAL ELECTRONICS	44.00	
CHA CONSULTING INC	6,777.14	LANDFILL MONITORING, BIOSOLIDS MANAGEMENT
CINTAS DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT	538.63	
CLEAR COMMUNICATIONS AND ELECTRONICS, INC	112.00	
CLEMENT COMMUNICATIONS INC.	76.68	
CONTRACTORS & IND SUPPLY, INC.	646.56	
CONTROL EQUIPMENT CO. INC.	971.26	
CORPORATE BENEFIT CONSULTANTS	1,750.00	SICK MERIT AND DIVESTITURE VALUATIONS FOR YEAR END
CREATIVE PRODUCT SOURCING, INC.	1,337.50	
D J R ENTERPRISES	540.00	
DEAN'S SEAMLESS GUTTER & CONSTRUCTION INC	150.00	
DEHART TILE CO., INC.	34.82	
DIAMONDBACK PRODUCTS, INC	21,184.80	CART LIFTERS FOR INSTALLATION ON OLD WASTE VEHICLES
DOMINION DOOR & HARDWARE INC	2,055.00	DOOR REPAIRS AT AQUATICS
DUNCAN FORD MAZDA	2,853.67	VEHICLE REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE
EEE CONSULTING, INC	1,000.00	CONSULT ON ALDER LANE POND
ELECTRICAL SUPPLY CO	550.79	
ELEVEN WEST, INC.	531.00	
EMERGENCY RESPONDERS MARKET	225.00	
EMS TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS, LLC	210.00	
EMS, INC	120.00	
ENVIRONMENTAL LAND WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICE, INC	14,000.00	WWTP SLUDGE DISPOSAL
FAMILY MEDICINE OF BLACKSBURG LLC	444.00	
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC.#75	8,408.93	PIPES, PARTS, FITTINGS
FIRE SAFETY PRODUCTS, INC	295.00	
FIRST DUE GEAR	848.74	
FISHER AUTO PARTS, INC.	159.99	
FITNESS CONCEPTS, INC.	290.00	
FLEET ONE, LLC	26,592.84	FUEL FOR TOWN VEHICLES
FLEET PRIDE, INC	784.34	
GALLS, AN ARAMARK COMPANY	1,157.08	
GAME TIME, INC	1,005.88	

TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG		
NOVEMBER BILLS TO BE PAID DECEMBER 6, 2013		
VENDOR NAME	AMOUNT	DESCRIPTION
GAY AND NEEL, INC.	200.00	
GLOVE PLANET, LLC	474.00	
GODWIN MANUFACTURING CO.,INC.	439.68	
GRAINGER	509.77	
GUYNN, MEMMER & DILLON, P.C.	5,596.80	LEGAL SERVICES
HARPER AND COMPANY INC.	398.73	
HARVEY CHEVROLET CORP.	671.41	
HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD.	3,498.27	WWTP 6 FLG 3 WAY VALVE
HOLLAND SUPPLY, INC	389.20	
HOME DEPOT 4634	306.47	
HOSE HOUSE, INC.	42.96	
INDEPENDENT AG EQUIPMENT, INC	1,608.86	TRAFFIC SENSOR STREETS
INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM OF ROANOKE VALLEY, INC	168.84	
INTOXIMETERS, INC.	945.00	
J J KELLER & ASSOCIATES, INC	423.42	
JAMES RIVER EQUIPMENT-SALEM	236.22	
JAMISON'S SHARPENING, INC	362.25	
JORDAN OIL CO., INC.	7,048.86	FUEL FIRE AND RESCUE
KIMBALL MIDWEST	95.63	
KING-MOORE, INC	2,340.00	IT CONSULTING
KORMAN SIGNS, INC.	966.46	
L-3 COMMUNICATIONS-MOBILE VISION	5,103.85	SURVEILLANCE CAMERA REPLACEMENT PD VEHICLE
LANDSCAPE SUPPLY INC.	840.00	
LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES	20.80	
LARRY LAWRENCE	60.00	
LITTLE SINKS, LLC	506.03	
LOWES HOME CENTERS, INC.	3,141.91	1193 NEW REFRIGERATOR AT WWTP AND VARIOUS TOOLS AND SUPPLIES ALL DEPTS
MAGIC CITY SPRINKLER INC.	430.00	
MARKETING ON MAIN STREET LLC	1,268.44	RESCUE SHIRTS
MCAFEE, INC	225.00	
MID-ATLANTIC FITNESS, LLC	162.50	
MID-STATE EQUIPMENT CO INC	16,088.25	14 NEW DUMPSTERS
MONTGOMERY COUNTY CHAMBER OF	1,499.00	
MONTGOMERY DISTRIBUTORS	5,683.23	SAFETY EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES AND WINTER SAFETY CLOTHING STREETS AND RESCUE
MONTGOMERY SANITATION SERVICES	2,616.80	PORTA POTTIES AND PUMPING WET WELLS
MONTGOMERY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY	31,974.15	ESTIMATED WASTE DISPOSAL SERVICES.
MOORE MEDICAL CORP.	271.35	
NAFECO INC	269.15	
NATIONAL ALLIANCE	100.00	
NATIONAL POOLS OF ROANOKE,INC.	294.47	
NEW RIVER ENGRAVING	125.00	
NEW RIVER FIRE EXTINGUISHERS	226.00	
NEW RIVER VALLEY AGENCY ON AGING	3,353.00	ANNUAL SUPPORT
NEW RIVER VALLEY PLANNING DIST.COMM.	1,164.78	
NEW RIVER VALLEY RENT ALL INC	15.40	
NORTHERN TOOL & EQUIPMENT	234.98	
OLD DOMINION BRUSH	692.13	
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS	13.51	
PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES, INC.	2,884.00	WATER TESTING
PETERS AQUATICS	50.00	
PGS, INC.	125.00	
PILOT FASTENERS LTD	578.96	
POWER ZONE - ALL SEASONS	2,382.49	937 GENERATOR AND VARIOUS REPAIRS AND PARTS TOWN EQUIPMENT
PRECISION GLASS & UPH. INC.	324.00	
PROFESSIONAL COMMUNICATIONS	4,410.00	MAINTENANCE ON E911 CONSOLE FOR DISPATCH PD
QUALITY TIRE & BRAKE SERVICE	271.33	
R. J. MERKEL, INC.	7,052.70	STREET STIPPING AND MARKINGS
RADFORD HOSE & FITTINGS, INC.	254.00	
RADIO EXPRESS, INC.	703.00	
REYNOLDS ARCHITECTS INC.	1,973.32	DESIGN THIRD FLOOR PD
ROANOKE AUTO SPRING WORKS	26.00	

TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG		
NOVEMBER BILLS TO BE PAID DECEMBER 6, 2013		
VENDOR NAME	AMOUNT	DESCRIPTION
ROPHO SALES INC	6.25	
SAFETY & COMPLIANCE SERVICES, INC.	278.00	
SAMS CLUB	464.45	
SAM'S ON THE MARKET, INC.	1,817.05	UNIFORMS RESCUE
SANICO, INC	3,644.26	JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
SAWYER PAVING COMPANY INC	2,185.52	ASPHALT MIX
SHADE TREE REPAIR LLC	4,200.00	BUILD AND REPAIR CATWALKS AT AQUATIC CENTER
SHELOR MOTOR MILE	694.52	
SIGN SYSTEMS, INC	450.00	
SIGN-A-RAMA	568.29	
SIMPLEXGRINNELL LP	1,959.15	TEST AND INSPEC ALARM SYSTEM AT REC CENTER
SIRCHIE FINGERPRINT LABORATORIES	311.28	
SISSON AND RYAN	6,100.00	ESTIMATE GRAVEL, SAND
SOUTHERN ELEVATOR CO., INC.	670.00	
SOUTHERN STATES	214.78	
STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE	105.75	
STATE ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO., INC.	271.20	
STEEL SERVICES, INC.	582.56	
STERICYCLE, INC	1,073.28	
SUPER SHOES STORES, INC	39.98	
SUSAN SWAN CONSULTING	2,475.00	HR CONSULTING SERVICES
TAYLOR OFFICE & ART SUPPLY, INC	2,577.52	VARIOUS OFFICE SUPPLIES
TEMPLETON-VEST	90.00	
TENCARVA MACHINERY CO.	49.25	
THE GUN SHOP	2,225.00	PD AMMUNITION
THOMPSON TIRE & MUFFLER	972.99	
TOWN OF BLACKSBURG	1,243.75	TRANSIT FEES FOR JULY SWIM MEETS
TOWN POLICE SUPPLY	624.00	
TRANE	1,179.18	REAPIRS TOWN HALL AND AQUATICS
TREASURER OF MONTGOMERY CO.	87.50	
TREASURER OF VA DEPT.GEN.SER.	103.00	
TSSI	889.00	
UNIFIRST CORPORATION	194.67	
USA BLUE BOOK	284.89	
VA INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES AGENCY	52.57	
VALLEY LANDSCAPING	675.00	
VIRGINIA BUSINESS SYSTEMS	164.53	
VIRGINIA REC. & PARK SOCIETY	260.00	
VIRGINIA TRUCK CENTER	89.32	
VULCAN, INC	3,398.53	SIGN MATERIALS
VUPS, LLC	369.60	
WADES FOODS INC.	5.19	
WALMART COMMUNITY/GECRB	37.12	
WILSON BROTHERS INCORPORATED	1,235.33	NAPA, PARTS FOR TOWN VEHICLE REPAIRS.
WORDSPRINT	667.83	
<b>TOTAL FOR DECEMBER 6, 2013</b>	<b>\$647,917.08</b>	

**TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG  
BILLS PAID DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2013  
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS**

<b>VENDOR</b>	<b>AMOUNT PAID</b>	<b>DESCRIPTION</b>
ODHFS TREASURER	15.00	
COOKS CLEAN CENTER	54.00	
Employee Reimbursements	91.01	
APCO INTERNATIONAL	92.00	
CARDMEMBER SERVICES	306.55	
VERIZON	310.75	
CARQUEST	354.53	
THOMPSON TIRE	424.00	
PUBLIC SAFTEY CENTER	925.90	Fire Helmets, tape
TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG	1,424.72	FUEL
<b>TOTAL PAID BILLS</b>	<b>3,998.46</b>	

**TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG**
**BILLS PAID DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2013**

VENDOR	AMOUNT PAID	DESCRIPTION
ADVANCE AUTO PARTS	65.45	
AECOM	1,600.00	BRIDGE INSPECTION
AFA PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS	514.33	
AIRGAS NATIONAL CARBONATION	858.60	CARBON DIOXIDE AND SERVICE CALLS AQUATICS
ALADTEC IN	1,695.00	EMS MANAGER SYSTEM RESCUE
ANTHEM BLUE CROSS	256,906.72	EMPLOYEE HEALTH INS 2 MONTHS NOV AND DEC
ANTHEM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY	2,738.00	OPTION LIFE INSURANCE
APPALACHIAN POWER	93,282.01	ELECTRIC UTILITIES
AT & T	731.12	
ATMOS ENERGY	4,352.27	GAS UTILITIES TOWN
BLACKSBURG NEWCOMERS CLUB	40.00	
BLUE RIDGE COPIER INC	13.49	
BLUE RIDGE PUMPKINS	200.00	
BMS DIRECT	5,910.73	POSTAGE TAX BILLS AND WATER BILLS
BOSTON MUTUAL LIFE INS	1,984.52	EMPLOYEE PD LIFE INS
BREKFORD INTERNATIONAL	1,353.00	
CARDMEMBER SERVICES	26,719.02	EQUIP MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 9315.19 DUES 548 SCHOOLS 3916.98 TRAVEL 9325.76 COMPUTER 655.99 UNIFORMS 139.49 FIRE RESCUE RECRUITING 2817.58
CHANDLER CONCRETE COMPANY	3,720.98	CONCRETE
CITIZENS	1,820.00	INTERNET SERVICES
CLEAR CREEK WATER WORKS	1,575.00	
COCA COLA BOTTLING	78.75	
COLD STONE CREAMERY	176.00	
COLONIAL LIFE INSURANCE	1,035.76	EMPLOYEE PD INSURANCE
CONCRETE PIPE AND CAST	11,526.53	METER VAULT
CUMULUS MEDIA	422.60	
DAVENPORT, LARAE	280.00	
DE LAGE LANDEN	1,634.00	PD COPIER LEASES
DELTA DENTAL	8,073.17	DENTAL COVERAGE
DONS AUTO	821.66	
DUES AND MEMBERSHIP	875.00	rec 595 PW 280
ECK SUPPLY	416.76	
EDIBLE ARRANGEMENTS	261.36	
EXXON MOBILE	394.94	
FEDEX	259.67	
FENTON PUMP SERVICES INC	392.72	
FRANKLIN COUNTY PUBLIC SAFETY	75.00	SCHOOLS RESCUE
GEMPLERS INC	188.35	
GENWORTH LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY	476.08	
GOV DEALS	609.94	
THE GUN SHOP	879.60	
KEY RISK INSURANCE CO	64,365.00	WORKERS COMP INS 2 MONTHS
KROGER LIMETED PARTNERSHIP	1,016.95	
LITTLE LEAPERS	150.00	
LUMOS NETWORKS INC	957.69	PHONE SERVICE
LUCI MERLO	270.00	
MARKETING ON MAIN STREET	246.32	
MOLLY MCCLINTOCK	480.00	
MONTGOMERY PUBLISHING	175.76	
MOYE, JESSICA	600.00	CONCEAL CARRY CLASSES REC CENTER
NRV REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY	434,416.36	QUARTERLY WATER PAYMENT
PAPA JOHNS	546.00	PIZZAS FOR BDAY PARTIES AT AQUATICS
PETTY CASH	122.09	
PHILLIPS ELECTRONICS HEALTHCARE	288.40	
PITNEY BOWES	8,494.00	POSTAGE FOR MACHINE AT ADMIN
REFUND FEES REC DEPT	325.00	

<b>TOWN OF CHRISTIANSBURG</b>		
<b>BILLS PAID DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2013</b>		
<b>VENDOR</b>	<b>AMOUNT PAID</b>	<b>DESCRIPTION</b>
REFUND TAXES	31.54	
REFUND water deposits	1,497.36	
REIMBURSEMENTS EMPLOYEE	640.77	DRUG SCREENS CDL LIC TESTING REIMBURSE EMP PAID EXPENSES
SAMS CLUB	770.40	
SCHOOLS	550.00	PD 275. PW 250 FD 25
SELECTIVE INSURANCE	25,850.00	LIABILITY INSURANCE
SHENTEL	309.22	INTERNET SERVICES REC CENTER
SNIPERCRAFT INC	126.00	
SOUTHEASTERN SECURITY CONSULTANTS	300.00	
SOUTHERN REFRIDGERATION	596.80	
SPRINT	809.17	
STAND ENERGY CORPORATION	3,940.76	NATURAL GAS FOR AQUATIC CENTER
SUBURBAN PROPANE	773.44	
TELEVENT USA	290.50	
TESSCO	1,056.72	RADIO SHOP SUPPLIES
TOMPSON REUTERS	130.00	
TRANE	29,701.40	REC CENTER 23264.48 FIRE DEPT 6436.92
TRACTOR SUPPLY	299.83	
TREASURER OF MONTGOMERY CO	57.14	
THE ROANOKE TIMES	1,679.71	JOB POSTINGS AND PUBLIC NOTICES PD 1023.09 RESCUE 3124.00 AQUATICS 258.19 COUNCIL 13.87 ENG 35.20 PW 253.03 BUILDING INSP 184.91
TRAVEL	4,892.29	
US CELLULAR	491.14	
VERIZON	5,274.88	PHONES
VERIZON-WIRELESS	4,485.74	CELL BILLS
VIRGINIA ASSOCIATION OF VOLUNTEER RESCUE SQUADS	655.50	DEATH BENEFIT
VIRGINIA BUSINESS SYSTEMS	224.91	COLOR COPIER PW
VIRGINIA RETIREMENT SYSTEM	154,911.70	RETIREMENT
VOLSAP	1,620.00	FIRE RESCUE VOLUNTEER RETIREMENT
WADES	149.06	
<b>TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE BILLS PAID</b>	<b>3,998.46</b>	
<b>TOTAL PAID BILLS</b>	<b>1,189,527.68</b>	
<b>6 TH OF THE MONTH BILLS</b>	<b>647,917.08</b>	
<b>GRAND TOTAL</b>	<b>1,841,443.22</b>	